
Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 14,2012

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, February 14,2012 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioners Tim Fowler, Charles Salter, Eber
Warren and Larry Whorton

MEMBER ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT: County Commissioner Kenny Heath, Tom McClanahan, Becca Lang, Dot
Lord, Bill Adkins, Charles Lane, Bryan and Patricia Stevenson, Frank and Nancy Ormond,
Robert and Jackie Austin, Jean Creech, Betty Stuart, Melinda Hughes, Kathy and Bill Chandler,
George and Regina Pawlikowski, Phil and Paula Hedrick, Lawrence Tucker and Bob McDonald.

Mayor Potter called the meeting to order by having a moment of silence.

Mayor Potter called for discussion regarding any revision to the proposed agenda.
Commissioner Fowler requested to add an update on the Paving of Country Club Drive as Item
#3 under Commissioner Reports. Commissioner Fowler motioned to accept the agenda as
amended. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Warren made a motion to accept the minutes from the January 10,2012 meeting.
All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter opened the floor for Public Comments. Mr. D. R. Austin noted that the crew
working on Country Club Drive had scraped the road moving soil and grass and in the process
had damaged his sprinkler system. Mr. Austin inquired as to who he should notify ofthis matter.
Mayor Potter advised Mr. Austin to file a report with the town hall and the matter would be
checked into with the contractor. Commissioner Salter inquired as to how far the sprinkler was
from the center of the highway. Mr. Austin stated he did not know, but it was within his
property line. Mayor Potter explained that the reason that was asked is because the town has a
sixty foot right of way, thirty feet on each side from the center of the road. Mr. Austin then
commented regarding the animal complaint stating that he had seen the complaint and expressed
concern that there was not a valid second witness, in as much as it appeared the complaint was
written by one person.

Mr. Paul Melson then spoke regarding his concern for speeding on Country Club Drive by
delivery trucks to the Country Club and persons going to the Country Club. Mr. Melson
suggested that perhaps additional speed limit signs could be posted. Mr. Melson also noted that
there is a "Children Playing" sign at the comer of Country Club and Hardison but it was blocked
and not readily visible and asked if something could be done to make it more visible.

County Commissioner Ken Heath spoke regarding the paving of Highway 306. He expressed his
appreciation to those who had signed the petition, wrote or called into the State. Mr. Heath said
it looked like they would be getting around to the paving in June and were doing preparation
work at this time and obtaining contracts.

114



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 14,2012

Mrs. Kathy Chandler spoke regarding Mr. Melson's dogs noting that she has lived by Mr.
Melson for a period of time and has never seen the dogs being aggressive.

Commissioner Warren then motioned to close the regular session meeting so that the animal
complaint hearing could be held. All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter stated that an animal complaint had been received from Mr. and Mrs. Pawlikowski,
which would be presented by Commissioner Salter. Commissioner Salter then reviewed the
complaint and explained the process used by the Board of Commissioners to determine the
validity of the complaint as relative to the Code of Ordinance of the Town of Minnesott Beach.
Upon notification of the complaint, Mr. Melson responded to the town and advised that since
that date his dogs have been under his control or restraint. Commissioner Salter expressed his
appreciation to Mr. Melson for having addressed the issue but noted that the board still had to
address the issues of the complaint received by Mr. & Mrs. Pawlikowski. Mr. & Mrs.
Pawlikowski were then afforded an opportunity to present their concern. Mr. Pawlikowski
reiterated what had been written on their complaint and noted that Mr. Tucker, who lives next to
Mr. Melson, came out and calmed the dogs down allowing them to leave the area. Mr.
Pawlikowski stated they did not feel they should have to deal with being harassed by dogs when
walking on the streets of the town. Mr. Pawlikowski noted that this was the first time they had
noticed the German Shepard being nasty. Mrs. Pawlikowski had nothing to add to Mr.
Pawlikowski's comments. Mr. Tucker said he did not remember the date or time of the incident
but did remember the incident. Mrs. Pawlikowski reminded Mr. Tucker that he came out, was
very nice and may have given the dogs a cookie or something but he calmed the dogs. Mr.
Melson then spoke and noted that he was not present at this incident but had kept his dogs under
his control since this incident. He stated the animals are sweet, trained and kept in the house or
on his property. Mr. Melson expressed concern that complaints would continue until his dogs
were in jeopardy of being removed. Commissioner Fowler made a motion to close the hearing
and continue with the Board of Commissioner regular session meeting. All ayes. Motion
passed. (All paperwork maintained at Town Hall.)

Mayor Potter then requested a motion for action on the complaint. Commissioner Salter made a
motion that Mr. Melson be found guilty of violation of the Code of Ordinance as pertained to the
complaint regarding his dogs and he be fined $25 for violation of the Code of Ordinance.
Commissioner Whorton called for discussion and noted that he felt Mr. Melson has made a good
effort to control his dogs and correct the situation. The motion was passed by a three to one
vote. Commissioners Fowler, Salter and Warren voting aye to fine Mr. Melson $25 for violation
of the ordinance, Commissioner Whorton voting nay.

Mayor Potter then proceeded with Unfinished Business. Commissioners Fowler and Salter
discussed the water tower property. Commissioner Fowler noted that following the last meeting
a revised statement of work had been compiled. D.H. Griffin has provided an unsolicited quote
for doing the work and has been advised that the town would have to go out for public bids.
Commissioners Fowler and Salter felt the statement of work sufficiently covered what the town

2/4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 14,2012

wanted done with the property. Commissioner Fowler moved that the Board proceed with
consulting the town attorney on putting together a contract for the work and advertising for bids
in accordance with the statement of work. All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter then addressed the issue of hiring a town clerk. Mayor Potter deferred to the town
manager for input regarding this. It was noted that the town had received three applications and
all applicants were qualified. One applicant, Linda Taylor, was more qualified having more
extensive computer experience than the other applicants. Mayor Potter asked for input from the
Board and instructed the town manager to proceed with hiring Ms. Taylor for the position.

Commissioner Whorton deferred to Mayor Potter regarding discussion of the dry stack situation
at Arlington Place. Mayor Potter recognized Mr. Tom McClanahan, project manager for
Arlington Place, and reiterated the concerns regarding the CAMA Land Use Plan for Pamlico
County, which Minnesott Beach had adopted, as it related to the dry stack situation. Mayor
Potter reviewed the steps he had taken to decide what action had to be taken to resolve this
matter. It was determined that the town would have to contact the Pamlico County Planning
Board and request changes to the Land Use Plan. Following discussion, on various options, it
was recommended that Mr. McClanahan present his proposal to the Planning Board for
addressing the issue. It was determined that Arlington Place would proceed in accordance with
recommendations as provided by the Board for obtaining changes to permit dry stack in
Arlington Place.

Commissioner Whorton presented a resolution for the Mayor and Board of Commissioners to
obtain ethics training presented by Attorney Jimmie Hick in agreement with the Eastern Carolina
Council. All ayes. Motion passed. (Copy attached).

Mayor Potter moved to New Business. There was no New Business.

Commissioner Reports:

Commissioner Warren provided the budget report noting the following balances for the period
ending January 31, 2012: First Citizens Checking, $59,014.95; First Citizens Savings,
$249,355.90; North Carolina Capital Management Trust, $200,409.04; First South Bank Savings,
$69,551.31; and First South Bank CD, $20,339.84. Commissioner Warren stated that the Town
is in excellent condition. Commissioner Warren also noted that telephone service has been
updated, providing the same service but at a reduced cost, which should save the Town roughly
forty-five dollars per month the first year and twenty to thirty dollars each month the following
two years.

Commissioner Whorton reported that a zoning permit #1-12-1, for Butch Hardison, 614 Country
Club Drive, to build an additional room on current structure had been approved, 2/1/2012.

Commissioner Fowler provided an update regarding the paving of Country Club Drive noting
that due to the good weather the work was started on Monday, February 13,2012.

3/4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
February 14,2012

Miscellaneous Information: Mayor Potter inquired about the regional waste survey received from
Coastal Regional Solid Waste Management Authority, due back to them by February 17,2012.
There was no input to be added from the board and the town manager was advised to complete
and return.

Commissioner Warren motioned to adjourn. All ayes. Motion passed.

/Catherine Hurm, Town Manager/Clerk

4/4



Minnesott Beach Ethics Training Resolution

WHEREAS, Per GS l60A-83: All members of governing boards of cItles, counties, local
boards of education, unified governments, sanitary districts, and consolidated
city-counties shall receive a minimum of two clock hours of ethics education within
12 months after initial election or appointment to the office and again within 12
month after each subsequent election or appointment to the office;

WHEREAS, Eastern Carolina Council is sponsoring a two-hour ethics training which
meets the requirements, to be facilitated by Jimmie B. Hicks, Jr., Esq. of Sumrell
Sugg Attorneys at Law (New Bern, NC), on January 31, 2012 at no cost to
participants;

WHEREAS, It was the consensus of the Minnesott Board of Commissioners at the
December 13, 2011, to utilize this training opportunity;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Minnesott Board of Commissioners will obtain their required ethics traInIng
sponsored by the Eastern Carolina Council and provided by Jimmie B. Hicks, Jr.,
Esq. Of Sumrell Suggs Attorneys at Law on January 31, 2012 in accordance with GS
160A-83.

fA

Adopted by the Minnesott Beach Board of Commissioners on this ~day of
J),Ct"kr/c, 20--.LL.

IClerk to the Board


